
 

 
 

14th July 2017 
 
 
Freedom of Information Request Reference No: FOI 005383/17 
 
I write in connection with your request for information received by the Norfolk and Suffolk 
Constabulary on the 20th June 2017 in which you sought access to the following information: 
 

I wish to request information relating to the organisation’s energy management 
system. I wish to request this information under the freedom of information act. 

 
Please find my request below, which relates to the organisation’s contract relating to 
their energy management system. Not all organisations have energy management 
system and if the organisation does not have one please ignore the contractual part 
of my request (1-6) and concentrate on questions 7-12. 

  
1 The supplier who provides the software to the organisation? 
2 The cost associated with the software. Please provide me with the annual 

spend. 
3 What is the brand of the software? 
4 What is the duration of the contract? 
5 When does this contract expires? 
6 When does the organisation plan to review this contract? 
7 Can you please provide me with the contract description of the services 

provided under the agreement with the supplier? This also includes potential 
extensions and support and maintenance services. 

  8 What is the organisation’s annual energy spend for the following: 
A Electricity 
B Gas 
C Water 

9 What is the total number of meter points for Electricity for: 
A Non Half Hourly (NHH) meter points 
B Half Hourly (HH) meter points 

10 What is the total number of Gas meter points? 
11 What is the total number of Water meter points? 
12 What is the total number of meter points for specialist gases and liquids? 
13 Can you please provide me with the contact details of the key person 

responsible for this contract or around energy management. 
14 Can you please send me the organisations’ energy management 

strategy/plan that covers 2017? 
 
Response to your Request 
 
The response provided below is correct as of 20 June 2017 
 
Norfolk and Suffolk Constabularies have located the following information as relevant to 
your request. 



The energy management system at the Operations and Communications Centre in 
Wymondham, Norfolk is the responsibility of Interserve. 
 
Building Management Software (BMS) for heating and ventilation (Norfolk and Suffolk 
Constabularies).  This only controls the heating and ventilation. 
 
Q1 The software provider is Cylon. 
Q2 There is no annual cost for the software.  The current heating and ventilation 

contractor services all heating/ventilation controls.  
Q3 The Building Maintenance Software (BMS) is Cylon. 
Q4 The BMS is not under a contract. 
Q5 Not applicable. 
Q6 No current plans. 
Q7 Not applicable as there is no contract. 
Q8  

2015/16 Norfolk Suffolk 

Electricity £730,925 £481,925 

Gas £157,169 £149,068 

Water/Sewage £59,841 £43,997 

 
2016/17 Norfolk Suffolk 

Electricity £688,305 £455,104 

Gas £93,539 £147,671 

Water/Sewage £65,194 £43,997 

 
Q9 

 Norfolk Suffolk 

Electricity NHH 63 29 

Electricity HH 8 4 

 
Q10 

 Norfolk Suffolk 

Gas 41 25 

 
Q11 

 Norfolk Suffolk 

Water 49 28 

 
Q12 Nil. 
 
Q13 Mr Neil Critchley is the Facilities Manager who is based at Suffolk PHQ. 
 
Q14 Below is an extract from the Joint Environmental Strategy which covers energy 

management:- 
 
 
 
 



1. ENERGY MANAGEMENT 
 

1.1 Since 1 April 2015 all energy has been purchased using the public sector buying 
group, Laser and managed by STC Energy who act as the constabularies energy 
management consultants.  Energy consumption has been closely monitored for 
some years and Annex A gives all figures and consumption data including 
baseline sums for both constabularies. 
 

1.2 Whilst operational obligations largely dictate the size and content of our police 
estate we will continue to seek the most economic use of energy commensurate 
with maintaining an efficient and acceptable working environment.  In both near 
and long term there will be influencing factors on our ability to reduce 
consumption of electricity: 
 

• The steady growth of information technology in daily use. 
 

• Raising awareness of the impact of police activities on the environment and 
encouraging participation in initiatives to reduce energy and resource usage (car 
sharing/cycling to work). 
 

• Our continued commitment to raising staff awareness (cultural change – switching 
off lights/computers). 
 

• Our continued effort in providing energy efficient properties, ensuring best 
environmental practices are adhered to during refurbishment and new build 
projects. 
 

• Our continued approach towards sharing premises with other external agencies. 
 

• Meeting short term legislative targets and government initiatives such as the 
requirement for Display Energy Certificates (DEC) in buildings over 250m². 
 

• Keeping accurate data and information updated. 
 

1.3 Display Energy Certificates.  Annex B is a typical DEC together with its Advisory 
Report (AR) which is produced by an accredited DEC assessor in line with 
government approved methodology and developed following physical visits.  Each 
report contains recommendations for the improvement of energy performance of 
the building, giving short (<3 years), medium (between 3-7 years) and long 
payback (>7 years) periods.  DEC legislation was introduced 1 October 2008 and 
applies to buildings occupied in whole or part by public authorities and frequently 

visited by the public over 1000m2.  However, legislation has seen this threshold 
reduce to 250 m² from July 2015. 



 

1.4 DECs include a Display Energy Rating and AR.  The AR is intended to help the 
occupier identify factors that could improve the building energy management thus 
reducing energy use and CO2 emissions.  Where the building has a total useful 
floor area of more than 1000m2 DECs come with a validity of one year. Building 
with a useful floor area between 250m2 and 1000m2 DECs are valid for 10 years.  
The AR is valid for 7 years and currently it is not mandatory to comply with its 
recommendations. 
 

1.5 DECs must be publicly displayed.  The penalty is £500 for failing to display a DEC 
at all times and / or £1000 for failing to have possession of a valid report. 
 

1.6 The energy performance rating for DECs in constabulary premises >1000 m2 are 
detailed below.  Currently buildings are rated between A to G.  Selected work 
within the AR reports is included within the CMWG project register for 
consideration and funding as necessary. 
 

DEC RATING  

Norfolk Suffolk 

OCC, Building 1 - G PHQ F Block/Amenity/LEC - D 

Bethel Street - D Bury St Edmunds Police Station - D 

Dereham Police Station - E Ipswich - C 

Gt Yarmouth Police Station - C Lowestoft - C 

Thetford – C Bury St Edmunds PIC – E 

Aylsham PIC  - E Martlesham PIC - E 

Kings Lynn PIC - D  

Gt Yarmouth PIC - E  

Wymondham PIC - E  
 
 

2. WATER MANAGEMENT 
 

2.1 Our region is one of the driest in the country, receiving on average only 600mm of 
rain a year. Common sense therefore dictates the use of water wisely, a 
sentiment that is echoed throughout both constabularies.  The reduction in the 
use of water also underpins our financial strategy in managing utility costs.  As 
such we have an ongoing commitment towards minimising water consumption 
and its waste; baseline and current usage figures are at Annex A. 
 

2.2 From 2013 and over the following 5 years selected premises are being surveyed 
and evaluated with the aim of installing further water saving technologies. 
 
 
 



This response will be published on the Constabularies web-site under the Freedom of 
Information pages:- 
 
https://www.norfolk.police.uk/about-us/our-data/disclosure-log 
https://www.suffolk.police.uk/services/freedom-information/disclosure-logs  
 
Should you have any further queries concerning this request, please contact Amanda 
Gibson, FOI Decision Maker, quoting the reference number shown above. 
 
A full copy of the Freedom of Information Act (2000) can be viewed on the ‘Office of Public 

Sector Information’ web-site; 
http://www.opsi.gov.uk/ 

 
Norfolk and Suffolk Constabularies are not responsible for the content, or the reliability, of 

the website referenced. The Constabulary cannot guarantee that this link will work all of the 
time, and we have no control over the availability of the linked pages. 



Your Right to Request a Review of Decisions Made Under the Terms of the  
Freedom of Information Act (2000). 

 
If you are unhappy with how your request has been handled, or if you think the decision is 
incorrect, you have the right to ask the Norfolk and Suffolk Constabulary to review their 
decision. 
 

Ask Norfolk and Suffolk Constabularies to look at the decision again. 
 
If you are dissatisfied with the decision made by Norfolk and Suffolk Constabularies under 
the Freedom of Information Act (2000), regarding access to information, you must notify the 
Norfolk and Suffolk Constabulary that you are requesting a review within 20 days of the date 
of its response to your Freedom of Information request.  Requests for a review should be 
made in writing and addressed to: 
 

Freedom of Information Decision Maker 
Information Management Department 
Norfolk Constabulary 
Operations and Communications Centre 
Jubilee House 
Falconers Chase 
Wymondham 
Norfolk NR18 0WW 
OR 

    Email: freedomofinformation@norfolk.pnn.police.uk  
 
In all possible circumstances Norfolk and Suffolk Constabulary will aim to respond to your 
request for us to look at our decision again within 20 working days of receipt of your request 
for an internal review. 
 

The Information Commissioner. 
 
After lodging a request for a review with Norfolk and Suffolk Constabulary, if you are still 
dissatisfied with the decision, you can apply to the Information Commissioner for a decision 
on whether the request for information has been dealt with in accordance with the 
requirements of the Act. 
 
For information on how to make application to the Information Commissioner please visit 
their website at www.ico.org.uk or contact them at the address shown below: 
 

The Information Commissioner’s Office 
Wycliffe House 
Water Lane 
Wilmslow 
Cheshire 
SK9 5AF 
Telephone: 01625 545 700 

 
 
 


